# MOUND DOCKS AND COMMONS COMMISSION MINUTES January 18, 2024

The Mound Docks and Commons Commission met on Thursday, January 18, 2024, at 7:00 p.m. in the City Council Chambers of the Centennial Building at 5341 Maywood Road in Mound.

Present: Chair Derrick Hentz, Vice Chair Dave Olson, Commissioners Heidi Peterson, James Vettel and Jesse Jensen and Representative Kevin Castellano

Absent: None

Others Present: Administrative Services Coordinator/City Clerk Kevin Kelly, Kester Batchelor, Lisa Batchelor, Mark Stehlik, Caroline Smith and Joseph Smith, Richard Jostrom, John and Linda Verkennes.

Derrick Hentz called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.

### 1. Approval of Agenda

**MOTION,** by Jensen, seconded by Vettel, to approve the agenda. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

## 2. Oath of Office by City Clerk Kevin Kelly

- A. Commissioner Dave Olson Non-Abutter
- B. Commissioner Jesse Jensen Abutter

Kelly administered the Oath of Office to Commissioners Olson and Jensen.

### 3. Election of Officers - Chair and Vice Chair

Heidi Peterson asked if Olson and Hentz would like to continue as Chairs. Hentz and Olson said they could continue on as Chairs.

**MOTION,** by Peterson, seconded by Jensen, to nominate Hentz as Chair of the Docks and Commons Commission. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

**MOTION,** by Jensen, seconded by Peterson, to nominate Olson as Vice Chair of the Docks and Commons Commission. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

Hentz continued as Chair and ran the meeting.

### 4. Approval of Meeting Minutes – November 16, 2023

**MOTION,** by Peterson, seconded by Olson, to approve the minutes from the November 16, 2023 DCC Meeting. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

## 5. Comments and suggestions from citizens present

John Verkennes, 4771 Island View Drive, approached the Docks and Commons Commission (DCC) and said he is a 27-year resident of Mound. Verkennes said he is retired and said his taxes have increased quite a bit over the past two years. Verkennes said he doesn't think his fees should be raised. Verkennes said slip license holders in the Dock Program are not paying close to the going rate for slips on Lake Minnetonka. Verkennes said the costs incurred by the Dock Program should be paid by all residents of the City and not pay additional fees through his dock license. Peterson said the additional fees are paid by all dock license holders and not just abutters and the Commons were platted for all residents to use.

Hentz said the Dock Program fees are charged to keep the access to the lake as affordable. Kelly said even with the \$50.00 increase dock license fees have not kept pace with inflation.

Linda Verkennes, 4771 Island View Drive, said as a dock license holder she has to pay for their dock's removal and installation fees and the Slip license holders do not and the slip license holders pay nearly the same amount in fees.

Hentz said slip holders pay \$175.00 more in license fees to support the installation and removal of the slips in the dock program.

Jensen said he is an abutting dock license holder said the Verkennes' have legitimate points but the fee structure of the dock program is a City Council decision. Castellano said the fee schedule will be looked at by the Council each year.

Olson said the property tax increase hurts and he came on to the DCC in order to keep the fees in the dock program as low as possible. Olson said he doesn't want to burden the Mound resident who is not using the dock program property with paying for a benefit which goes to only people in the dock program.

Rick Jostrom, 3021 Brighton Blvd., said agrees with the Verkennes' and lives on Brighton Commons. Jostrom said he has been on the Commons for 35 years and his question was where is the money going to in the Dock Program and is there a one-page sheet with the dock program expenses listed. Hentz said every year there is a budget which lists the expenses in the dock program. Jostrom said it seems like there is greater expenses than there used to be in the dock program. Jostrom said a dock license fee was \$125.00 when he first applied for a dock license. Hentz said dock program fees have gone up in increments over the years.

Jostrom asked if dock program expenses were being paid by all residents of the City and the breakdown of what is going to tree removal and rip rap. Heidi Peterson said the Dock Program is self-sustaining. Jostrom said his property has an adjacent vacant City lot and the City pays for the removal of trees on that property and mows the grass. Hentz said the costs in the dock program was discussed at the last DCC Meeting and why the costs for tree removal increased due to the need to remove diseased trees. Peterson said the ultimate decision of fees are made by the City Council.

# 6. Brighton Abutter Group Rip Rap Request

Kelly said the 2024 Brighton Group of abutting property owners have requested a cost share with the City for Rip Rap of Brighton Commons adjacent to their property. Kelly said there have been other cost share agreements for rip rap in the past including 2023. Kelly said the Brighton Commons shoreline north of Manchester Road needs to be improved. Kelly said the question which needs to be answered would be the amount the cost share paid by the City. Kelly said inflation has been at nearly 5% in the last year and the cost of field stone used for rip rap has been increasing at a higher rate than general inflation. Kelly said he offered four different cost scenarios which include an increase at roughly the rate of inflation and another at 75% of the rate the bids the 2024 Brighton Group has received. Discussion ensued about the cost of fitted rip rap versus what is termed the Class IV rip rap which is a tumbled rock placement.

Castellano said the estimated expense of the 2024 Brighton rip rap is about \$30K and the capital outlay budget is \$35K and if there is any other cost to come from this budget item. Kelly said there most likely won't be any other item and if something comes up that item would need to be approved by the City Council if the Capital Outlays grew beyond the approved budget. Kelly said the expectation was to keep the Capital Outlay budget at \$35K a year going forward to complete the remaining portions of Brighton Commons.

Castellano said the \$142.00 a linear foot for the 2024 Brighton Group rip rap was based on 75% of the cost of the bids which they have received. Castellano, Vettel and Jensen all expressed they would like to see the 75% cost share as a ceiling.

Mark Stehlik, 2927 Cambridge Lane, said he reached out to other contractors to get more than the two bids they currently have received. Stehlik said the understanding of the 2024 Brighton Group is the City will not pay for the Fitted Rip Rap versus the Class IV (random placement of field stone) and additional costs will not be paid for by the City. Stehlik said the vendors aren't recommending the random placement of rip rap. Stehlik said there is 217 feet of linear shoreline which includes the area of the two Right of Ways which lead to Brighton Commons. Stehlik said the \$142.00 a linear foot was based on the 75% of the City cost shares paid by the City a few years ago and in 2023 for rip rap. Peterson said the City share should be limited to no more than 75% of the amount of rip rap. Peterson and Vettel both said the City should not set an expectation of a percentage and offer a dollar amount but not guarantee a set percentage each year.

Vettel said the \$142.00 a linear foot cost would be within the capital budget. Kelly said the City is looking to keep the dollar amount within the budgeted amount for 2024. Kelly said the area is inaccessible commons with no non-abutting docks. Kelly said the Capital budgeted in the Dock Program for 2024 is \$35K.

Discussion ensued about the linear foot dollar amount which should be approved.

**MOTION,** by Peterson, seconded by Jensen, to approve the 2024 Brighton Group cost share agreement in the amount of \$142.00 a linear foot paid by the City for 217 feet of Brighton Commons Shoreline. All voted in favor. Motion carried.

# 7. 2023 Annual Dock Report

Kelly presented the 2023 Annual Dock Report. Kelly said all of the 47 of the Lost Lake Slips were rented with 23 going to Villa owners and 24 to Mound residents. Kelly said only four Villas townhomes didn't have a slip. Kelly said the 10 slips on the floating boardwalk will go to Artessa residents in 2025 who will have first right of refusal for those slips. Kelly said Dock Administration had a meeting with Artessa Management to discuss the process for assigning residents to those slips.

Kelly said 52 of the 53 maximum allowed watercraft were used in Dreamwood. Kelly noted there is one abutter who does not moor a boat year after year. Kelly said he has notified Dreamwood license holders that if they want a second watercraft those watercraft are allocated first come, first served.

Kelly said 515 out of 590 maximum allowed watercraft per the Lake Minnetonka Conservation District (LMCD) license were rented in 2023. Kelly said the BSU numbers have been stable. Kelly said there were 11 abutters who did not moor a watercraft and there were four abutters who did not put in a dock in 2023.

Kelly said the Canoe/Kayak Rack use has also been stable with 24 of the 32 spaces used in 2023. Kelly said a fourth rack at Twin Park had only one user out of eight spaces in 2023. Hentz said is the City thinking of moving to another spot on the lake. Kelly said the other three racks are full nearly every year.

Kelly shared the additional following statistics for the 2023 season:

- Nine discontinued/grandfathered "secondary" shared dock sites remain
- Wait list increased to 248 applicants and there were fewer openings in the Dock Program
- Nine wait list applicants moved off of the wait list and into the Dock Program
- There was one opening in the Dock Program in Woodland Point and one in Dreamwood
- One wait list applicant took a one-year temporary slip at Centerview
- There were no wait list applicants in the Top 40 who became primary shares in the Dock Program

Kelly said Barry Blievernicht did another great job in 2023 and is expected to return for 2024.

Kelly added that there were no boats towed in 2023 and said he hasn't towed a boat in three years now.

# 8. Reports

Castellano said the DCC shared the same sentiment as the Council to make the Dock Program sustainable and not be an enterprise fund. Castellano said another goal was to make sure there are enough reserves and to keep the dock budget stable to be able to do projects which are needed.

Castellano said the Dock Program is using the right method now to look yearly at the reserves and fees each year. Castellano said the Council said the Dock Program is made to be selfsustaining and the general public should not be paying into the expenses of the Dock Program.

Castellano said he had a discussion with the City Attorney that he should recuse himself of any discussions which were financial as Castellano is a dock license holder.

Peterson said she thinks the City could be moving to a user tax model for the Dock Program and everyone in the City has the option to use the Dock Program. Peterson said she feels tree removal should be borne out of the City General Fund.

Peterson said the City Council needs to reassess its budget each year. Olson said the City Council is under more pressure to do cost analyses for City services.

Jensen said how are fees decided because last year the Council provided the Dock Fund budget to the DCC. Castellano said he recused himself from the fee discussion. Kelly said due to the Strategic Financial Planning started by the Council led the budget discussion rather than first being recommended by the DCC first.

Castellano said the Comprehensive Plan Amendment was approved by the Met Council and the housing density assigned to the City was lowered. Castellano said the development moratorium for multifamily project is now lifted.

Castellano added that the City has a Facebook page and the Surfside Park Eli Hart Playground plan was approved by the City Council.

Castellano said that Jesse Dickson, the new City Manager for the City, has started.

Kelly said the Presidential Nomination Primary starts on January 19<sup>th</sup>. Kelly said he has talked to another abutter group on Brighton Commons so there may be another Rip Rap project group on Brighton Commons for 2025.

Kelly asked about starting DCC meetings at 6:00 p.m. which is what the City Council is considering for its meetings. The DCC consensus was that this was okay with meetings to end at 8:00 p.m.

# 9. Adjourn

**MOTION,** by Peterson, seconded by Hentz, to adjourn the meeting at 8:42 p.m. All voted in favor. Motion carried.